
1

MEETING: LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday 9th September, 2019

TIME: 6.30 pm

VENUE: Town Hall, Southport

Member

Councillor John Kelly (Chair)
Councillor Brenda O'Brien (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Bradshaw
Councillor Carragher
Councillor Dodd
Councillor Friel
Councillor Gannon
Councillor Halsall
Councillor Keith
Councillor McGinnity
Councillor Morris
Councillor Michael O'Brien
Councillor Anne Thompson
Councillor Lynne Thompson
Councillor Tweed

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Ruth Appleby
Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 20181
E-mail: ruth.appleby@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes (Pages 5 - 12)
Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2019

4.  Town Lane, Kew - Objection to Proposed Raised Cycle 
Zebra Crossing / Traffic Regulation Order

(Pages 13 - 
22)

Report of the Head of Highways and Public Protection

5.  Public Path Dedication - Netherton Lane, Netherton (Pages 23 - 
32)

Report of the Head of Highways and Public Protection

6.  Georgia Close, Bootle – Proposed Permit Parking Area 
Zone 421

(Pages 33 - 
42)

Report of the Head of Highways and Public Protection

7.  Determinations made under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
the Gambling Act 2005: period covering 18 May 2019 to 
16 August 2019

(Pages 43 - 
52)

Report of the Head of Highways and Public Protection



4

8.  Taxi Licensing Cross Border Authorisations (Pages 53 - 
62)

Report of the Head of Highways and Public Protection

9.  Taxi Licensing Fees (Pages 63 - 
76)

Report of the Head of Highways and Public Protection



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

1

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON  17 JUNE 2019

PRESENT: Councillor John Kelly (in the Chair)
Councillor Brenda O'Brien (Vice-Chair)

Councillors Carragher, Dodd, Friel, Gannon, Halsall, 
Keith, McGinnity, Morris, Michael O'Brien, 
Anne Thompson, Lynne Thompson and Tweed

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Bradshaw. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

3. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2019 be confirmed as a 
correct record.

4. GONVILLE ROAD, BOOTLE - RECEIPT OF PETITION 
REQUESTING THE RE-INTRODUCTION OF RESIDENTS 
PRIVILEGED PARKING 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection which informed Members of the receipt of a 35 signature 
petition requesting the introduction of a Residents’ Parking Scheme on 
Gonville Road, Bootle (Cambridge Road to Hawthorne Road).

Prior to consideration of the report the Committee received a presentation 
by Mr Kenny, the Lead Petitioner, in support of the proposal. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the petition be noted; 

(2) the matter be referred back to Cabinet Member – Locality Services 
following discussion with Derby Ward Members relating to the funding of a 
larger scheme; and 

(3) the lead petitioner be advised accordingly. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

2

5. GEORGIA CLOSE, BOOTLE - REQUEST FOR RESIDENTS 
PRIVILEGED PARKING 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection which informed Members of the receipt of an e-petition 
requesting the provision of a Residents’ Parking Scheme in Georgia 
Close, Bootle. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the petition be noted; 

(2) the matter be referred back to Cabinet Member – Locality Services 
following discussion with Linacre Ward Members relating to the funding of 
the scheme; and 

(3) the lead petitioner be advised accordingly. 

6. HAWTHORNE ROAD, BOOTLE - RESULTS OF PUBLIC 
CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED RESIDENTS PARKING 
SCHEME 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection on the results of a consultation process on a proposed 
Residents’ Privileged Parking Scheme with residents on the section of 
Hawthorne Road, fronting property numbers 241 to 263 (odd numbers 
only). 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the results of the public consultation be noted;

(2) the progression of a Traffic Regulation Order be supported by the 
Committee, the effect of which will introduce a Residents’ Privileged 
Parking Scheme to operate at all times on the west side of Hawthorne 
Road, fronting properties numbers 241 to 263 (odd numbers only); 

(3) the Cabinet Member – Locality Services be requested to authorise the 
progression of the necessary Traffic Regulation Orders, including those of 
public consultation and advertising the Council’s intention to implement the 
Order; 

(4) subject to the scheme being funded from the delegated s106 budget 
for Derby Ward, the progression of the recommended Traffic Regulation 
Order be supported by the Committee; 

(5) in order to simplify Sefton’s Traffic Regulation Orders, current Orders 
which exist on any of the roads affected by this proposal be revoked, and 
new Orders be made incorporating the new amendments. In this respect, 
the following Orders will be revoked and replaced with a new Order: 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

3

‘Metropolitan Borough of Sefton (Hawthorne Road, Bootle) (On-Street 
Parking Places, Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting) Order, 2019.’ 

(6) in the event that no objections are received during the consultation 
process referred to in (3) above, the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer 
be authorised to make the Order and the Service Manager – Highways 
Management be authorised to implement the Order; and 

(7) in the event that objections are received during the consultation 
process, the matter be referred to a future meeting of this Committee for 
consideration. 
 
7. MAY STREET, BOOTLE - PROPOSED RE-INTRODUCTION OF 

RESIDENTS PARKING SCHEME 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection on the results of a consultation with residents which 
recommended the re-introduction of a Residents’ Parking Scheme in May 
Street, Bootle. 

RESOLVED: 

That subject to confirmation from the Derby Ward Members regarding the 
funding for the Scheme:

(1) the results of the consultation be noted;

(2) the Cabinet Member – Locality Services be requested to approve the 
introduction of the Residents’ Privileged Parking Scheme in May Street, 
Bootle as shown in Annex A to the report; 

(3) the progression of the necessary Traffic Regulation Orders be 
authorised, including public consultation and advertising the Council’s 
intention to implement the Order; 

(4) in the event that no objections are received during the consultation 
process referred to in (3) above the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer be 
authorised to make the Order and the Service Manager – Highways 
Management be authorised to implement the Order and; 

(5) in the event that objections are received during the consultation 
process the matter be referred back to this Committee for consideration. 
  
8. KARA CLOSE, BOOTLE, RESULTS OF PUBLIC 

CONSULTATION, PROPOSED RESIDENTS PARKING SCHEME 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection on the results of a consultation with residents on a proposal to 
introduce a Residents’ Privileged Parking Scheme in Kara Close, Bootle.

RESOLVED: That

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

4

(1) the results of the public consultation be noted;

(2) the progression of a Traffic Regulation Order be supported by the 
Committee, the effect of which will introduce a Residents’ Privileged 
Parking Scheme to operate at all times on Kara Close, Bootle; 

(3) the Cabinet Member – Locality Services be requested to authorise the 
progression of the necessary Traffic Regulation Orders, including those of 
public consultation and advertising the Council’s intention to implement the 
Order; 

(4) subject to the scheme being funded from the delegated s106 budget 
for Derby Ward, the progression of the recommended Traffic Regulation 
Order be supported by the Committee; 

(5) in order to simplify Sefton’s Traffic Regulation Orders, current Orders 
which exist on any of the roads affected by this proposal be revoked, and 
new Orders be made incorporating the new amendments. In this respect, 
the following Orders would be revoked and replaced with a new Order:

‘Metropolitan Borough of Sefton (Kara Close, Bootle) (Revocation) Order, 
2005.’ 

(6) in the event that no objections are received during the consultation 
process referred to in (3) above, the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer 
be authorised to make the Order and the Service Manager – Highways 
Management be authroised to implement the Order; and 

(7) in the event that objections are received during the consultation 
process, the matter be referred to a future meeting of this Committee for 
consideration. 

9. MANOR ROAD/SHERWOOD AVENUE/KAIGH AVENUE, 
CROSBY - OBJECTION TO PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION 
ORDER 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection which advised Members on the receipt of objections to the 
proposed Traffic Regulation Orders at the junction of Manor Road with 
Sherwood Avenue and Kaigh Avenue, Crosby. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the objections be noted;

(2) the Traffic Regulation Orders be progressed as originally advertised; 
and 

(3) the objectors be advised accordingly. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

5

10. DETERMINATIONS MADE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
AND THE GAMBLING ACT 2005: PERIOD COVERING 23 
FEBRUARY 2019 TO 17 MAY 2019 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection updating on applications made under the Licensing Act, 2003 
and the Gambling Act 2005, which had been determined by Licensing 
Officers. 

The report indicated that Sefton Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
(issued under the Licensing Act 2003) and the Statement of Gambling 
Policy (issued under the Gambling Act 2005), both followed the 
recommended delegation of functions contained within the Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Guidance 
issued under Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005.  Where there are no 
relevant representations to applications, then these matters would be dealt 
with by Officers in order to speed matters through the system. The 
Guidance also recommended that where powers had been delegated, the 
Committee would receive regular reports on decisions made by Officers in 
order to maintain an overview of the general licensing situation.
 
The report indicated that during the period 23 February 2019 to 17 May 
2019 the Head of Highways and Public Protection had received and 
determined the following numbers of applications: 

Under the Licensing Act 2003:

 81 Applications made under Premise Licences 
 40 Applications made under Personal Licences
 80 Notifications of Temporary Event Notices 
 22 Notifications of Late Temporary Event Notices 

Under the Gambling Act 2005:

 8 Appliations made under Gambling Premise Licences  
 3 Applications made under Licensed Premises Gaming Permits 

Details of the determinations were indicated in annexes 1 and 2 of the 
report.

RESOLVED: 

That the report and the fact that further update reports would be submitted 
as necessary be noted.

11. LOCAL LICENSING: PERFORMANCE REPORT 2018/19 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection which reported the progress against the 2018/19 Local 
Licensing Service Plan. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

6

RESOLVED: That

(1) the report be noted; and 

(2) similar reports be brought to meetings of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee on an annual basis. 
 
12. TAXI LICENSING PERFORMANCE REPORT 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection which informed Members of the progress of the Taxi Licensing 
Service during 2018/19. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the content of the report be noted; and 

(2) similar reports be brought to the meetings of the Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee on an annual basis. 
 
13. DRIVER MEDICALS 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection on proposed changes to the provision of driver medicals. 

Mr Toohey, Principal Taxi Licensing Officer indicated that currently drivers 
were required to provide full DVLA Group II medicals conducted by a 
doctor registered as a general practitioner, who could either be their own 
GP or a GP registered at another practice.  However, some drivers had 
experienced lengthy delays in obtaining appointments with GPs to carry 
out the medicals and therefore it was proposed to extend the medical 
assessment provision to enable any doctor who was General Medical 
Council (GMC) registered and licensed to practice in the United Kingdom 
to be able to carry out driver medicals.  This was in line with current DVLA 
guidelines.

RESOLVED: 

That an amendment be made to the existing condition that all driver (DVLA 
Group II) medical examinations be ‘obtained via the applicant’s own 
General Practitioner or a GP at another practice provided they have 
access to the applicant’s medical records at the time of the examination’, 
to include the sentence ‘or any doctor GMC registered and licensed to 
practice in the United Kingdom’.

14. PROPOSED CHANGES TO SOUTHPORT TOWN CENTRE 
HACKNEY RANKS 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection which informed Members of the receipt of a request from the 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

7

North Sefton Hackney Carriage Association (NSHCA) for changes to a 
number of Hackney Ranks within Southport Town Centre, namely:

 ‘Troc Rank’ – Lord Street, Southport (the rank on the service 
road fronting the former Woolworths store – originally the 
Trocadero Cinema, hence the Trade’s reference to the ‘Troc’ 
Rank, as indicated in paragraph 2 of the report);

 the Rank outside June’s the Florist (on the service road 
adjacent to Eastbank Street Square, opposite June’s the 
Florist, as detailed in paragraph 3 of the report);

 Main Rank – Lord Street (the feeder rank on the north-west 
side of Lord Street to the north east of Hulme Street, as 
detailed in paragraph 4 of the report ); and

 Hackney Horse Drawn Carriage Spaces – Promenade (as 
detailed in paragraph 5 of the report).

 
Mr Terry Wood, Environmental Health and Licensing Manager, advised 
the Committee that an Unmet Demand Survey of Hackney Carriage Ranks 
had recently been commissioned which would include an analysis of the 
use of taxi ranks across the Borough. The survey was expected to be 
completed by January 2020, following which it would be presented to the 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee by the company undertaking the 
Survey. It was therefore, suggested that Members would be better 
informed to make a decision on the alteration of existing ranks in 
Southport once results of the Unmet Demand Survey were published. Mr 
Wood indicated that this did not apply to the Hackney Horse Drawn 
Carriage Spaces on the Promenade, which were no longer in use. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the results of the consultation regarding changes to various 
Hackney Ranks in Southport Town Centre be noted;

(2) it be noted that an Unmet Demand Survey of taxi ranks and been 
commissioned and on completion, the results of the survey would 
be presented for consideration by the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee;

(3) it be agreed that consideration of amendments to taxi ranks at 
the following locations in Southport, be deferred to enable an 
informed decision to be made, taking into account the Unmet 
Demand Survey results:

 
 Troc Rank’ – Lord Street; 
 The Rank outside June’s the Florist; and 
 Main Rank – Lord Street (the feeder rank on the north-west 

side of Lord Street to the north east of Hulme Street); and

(4) the Cabinet Member – Locality Services be requested to authorise 
the progression of the necessary Traffic Regulation Order for the 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE- MONDAY 17TH JUNE, 
2019

8

removal of the five Horse Drawn Carriage Spaces on the 
Promenade, Southport.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



Report to: Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Monday 9 
September 2019

Subject: Town Lane, Kew - Objection to Proposed Raised Cycle Zebra 
Crossing / Traffic Regulation Order

Report of: Head of Highways 
and Public 
Protection

Wards Affected: Kew

Portfolio:

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To report the receipt of one objection against a proposal to introduce a raised cycle 
friendly zebra crossing on Town Lane, Kew.

Recommendation(s):

(1) The objection be noted

(2) The cycle friendly zebra crossing be progressed as originally advertised.

(3) The objector be advised accordingly.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The council has the power to revoke a Traffic Regulation Order (Part IV of Schedule 9 to 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984) as well as the power to make a new Traffic 
Regulation Order (Section 1 of that Act). Authorisation to advertise new Traffic 
Regulation Orders falls under the remit of Cabinet Member Locality Services.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



(A) Revenue Costs

None

(B) Capital Costs

The Council has the power to make Traffic Regulation Orders under Section 1 of the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984. The cost of all legal and administrative procedures in the 
processing of the permanent road closure, amounting to approximately £1,000 will be funded 
from the Transportation Capital Programme for 2018/2019. 

The cost of the crossing point will be met from the allocation for Southport East West Links 
scheme in the Transportation Capital Programme. This is made up of £125k within the 19/20 
Transport Capital Programme and £374k funded from LCR Sustainable Transport 
Enhancement Package (STEP) as identified in the 19/20 Transport Capital Programme.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

None
Legal Implications:

None
Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:  N/A

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:  Will improve walking and cycling 
conditions in Southport.

Commission, broker and provide core services:  N/A

Place – leadership and influencer:  Enhances the local environment by promoting 
alternative modes of travel. 

Drivers of change and reform:  N/A

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:  The route (of which this crossing forms part) 
will improve walking and cycling links between residential areas and Southport Town 
Centre, business parks & industrial estates.

Greater income for social investment: N/A

Cleaner Greener:  Supports sustainable travel and both leisure and utility cycling and 
walking in Southport.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5747/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4871/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

There are no directly affected residents therefore no direct public external consultations have 
been undertaken for the proposed new raised cycle zebra crossing of Town Lane. The 
Forestry Commission hold the lease for the adjacent land and have been consulted and 
involved in determining the overall design of the route in the area.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Michelle Langshaw
Telephone Number: 0151 934 4224
Email Address: michelle.langshaw@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

Southport East West Cycle Links – Report to Licensing & Regulatory Committee 
24/09/2018

Proposed raised zebra crossing, Town Lane, Kew, Southport – Report to Cabinet 
Member Locality Services. Date of issue 30/01/2019 / date of decision 06/02/2019

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The Southport East West Cycle Links scheme will deliver improvements to the 
east-west cycling infrastructure provision in the town. This will also complement 
the strong north-south coastal cycle link and facilitate access to local facilities 
around the east of the town and the town centre. The majority of development 
planned for Southport over the next 15 years is around the Kew area of Southport, 
to the east of the Town. The Kew area is located 2.5km east of the town centre 
and with key destinations at either end, this is an ideal location to encourage cycle 
use. Expansion of the existing Southport Business Park and the development of 
over 1500 homes are planned for the area around Kew. 

1.2 The central area of Southport between the Town Centre and Kew has the highest 
proportion of journeys made by bicycle in the town with approximately 4% of 
journeys to work and up to 20% of journeys to school made by bike. Provision of 
an at grade cycle friendly zebra crossing at this location would further encourage 
uptake of cycling and improve conditions for pedestrians. 

1.3 A report was taken to Licencing and Regulatory Committee on Monday 24th 
September, which set out the modifications to the highway needed to realise this 
scheme. The provision of a new raised cycle friendly zebra was detailed within 
this report. The provision of such a raised table falls within the regulations as set 
out in the Highways Act and as such a Traffic Regulation Order is required.

1.4 The making of the TRO was approved by Cabinet Member on 30th January 2019 
and then advertised as required from the 3rd July to 31st July 2019.

1.5 This proposed new raised cycle friendly zebra crossing as shown in Appendix A 
will provide a crossing point to link Kew Woods and Town Lane Kew to the 
Greenway link. The cycle friendly zebra crossing will be constructed on a raised 
table which will provide an at grade crossing point on Town Lane for cyclists and 
pedestrians.

2.0 Objection

2.1 One emailed objection was received during the 21 day notice period to the advertised 
Traffic Regulation Order. The main objections are outlined below:

a) The raised cycle friendly part of this zebra will cause continuous damage and 
collapse of the cycle road surface

b) The potential for vibrations

A copy of the email and attached photos are included in Appendix B.

3.0 Discussion / Our response

3.1 The objection raised is that the proposed raised cycle friendly part of the zebra 
crossing will cause continuous damage and collapse of the cycle road surface.  
The proposed cycle friendly zebra takes the form of a 9m long raised plateau with 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



2m long ramps at either side and will be similar to the 12 raised tables constructed 
at junctions along the length of Portland Street 10 years ago, which haven’t 
caused any significant maintenance issues.  Similar raised crossings are currently 
being constructed on new housing estates throughout the borough, including the 
new estate on Town Lane.  

3.2 The complaint also refers to the potential for vibrations.  Whenever the Council 
receives complaints of this nature, we refer to the findings of two reports carried 
out by the Transport Research Laboratory into traffic induced ground-borne 
vibration. Those reports being TRL 235 ‘Traffic calming: Vehicle generated 
ground-borne vibration alongside speed control cushions and road humps’ and 
Report TRL 416 ‘Traffic calming: Vehicle generated noise and ground-borne 
vibration alongside sinusoidal, round-top and flat top road humps’.  The proposed 
combined zebra / cycle crossing would be constructed on a flat top table, a form of 
flat top road hump. This feature would be constructed in accordance with The 
Highways (Road Humps) Regulations 1999. 

TRL Report 416 concludes: “With regard to potential damage to buildings it is very 
unlikely that even superficial damage to buildings could be caused by the 
installation of humps and cushions”. In addition the reports have calculated the 
minimum distances where a complaint of vibration could be expected. It was 
found that for the higher level of peak vertical vibration expressed as 1mm/s 
complaints could be expected if the distance from the property to the feature for 
the softest soil type was less than 12m. The distance of the feature from the 
nearest properties is approximately 24.5m, well in excess of 12m.

3.3 The complainant refers to other crossings in Southport, on Bentham’s Way and 
Lord Street at its junction with Portland Street as suitable alternatives.  These are 
different types of crossing, which do not provide the same degree of priority or 
safety to vulnerable road users crossing at them.  Since their introduction, 
guidance has been revised on the provision of crossings, with the encouragement 
of the introduction of raised crossing points, if these crossings were being 
introduced now it is likely that raised crossings would be considered, for the Lord 
Street location, which is subject to a 30mph speed limit.  The provision of raised 
crossing points changes the feel of the road for motorists and enhances 
compliance of the speed limit (which in this case is 20mph).  This reduces vehicle 
speeds, emphasises the presence of the crossing point and improves road safety 
for vulnerable road users who are using the crossing location.   

3.4 For these reasons the issues raised by the objector are not considered sufficient 
to justify changes to or cancellation of the proposals. The proposed raised 
crossing provided a valuable element of the Southport East West Links scheme 
and should be constructed as proposed.

4.0 Recommendations

a) The objection be noted

b) The Raised Cycle Zebra Crossing be progressed as originally advertised

c) The objector be advised accordingly
Page 17

Agenda Item 4



ANNEX A

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



ANNEX B

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



Page 20

Agenda Item 4



Page 21

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to: Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Monday 9 
September 2019

Subject: Public Path Dedication – Netherton Lane, Netherton
Report of: Head of Highways 

and Public 
Protection 

Wards Affected: Park
St Oswald

Portfolio:

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

i. To seek Members’ authority to dedicate a section of Netherton Lane as a Public 
Bridleway and upgrade a section of Sefton Footpath No.14 as a bridleway.  

ii. To modify the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way 
accordingly.

Recommendation(s):

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer be authorised in conjunction with the Head of 
Highways and Public Protection to:- 

i. Dedicate a section of Netherton Lane as public bridleway pursuant to Section 
1 of the Localism Act 2011 as shown on plan DC1989, to be known as Sefton 
Bridleway No.N14.

ii. Dedicate a section of Sefton Footpath No.14 as a bridleway pursuant to Section 
1 of the Localism Act 2011 as shown on plan DC1991 and to rename it as 
Sefton Bridleway No.N14.

iii. Make the Legal Event Modification Orders under the provisions of Section 53 
of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to record the additional way as shown 
on plan DC1990 on the Definitive Rights Of Way Map and Statement, the 
change of status of a section of Sefton Footpath No.14 to a bridleway as shown 
on plan DC1992.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

Consideration of rights of way issues fall under the remit of the Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



2

To recognise the routes as public rights of way and protect the rights of the public to 
the use and enjoyment of these paths. 

Sefton Council fulfils the role of Surveying Authority and as a consequence has a duty 
to continually review the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way and 
should it become aware of the need to add, alter or remove a Right of Way, make the 
required Modification Order.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

Do nothing and leave the western section of Netherton Lane in its current condition 
and legal status.
 
It has been shown that the path is used and is a valued public amenity and amongst 
other things, provides a means of access to the adjacent Public Footpaths and Pinfold 
Cottage Woodland Park. Dedicating and recording it as a public right of way will protect 
its availability for the public.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

Netherton Lane is already included within the Authority’s maintenance responsibilities 
as landowner and Highway Authority for the section that is Sefton Footpath No.14 
therefore, the proposals will not impose any additional liabilities upon the Council.

(B) Capital Costs

Nil.

  
Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

None
Legal Implications:

See body of the report
Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Not applicable

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Not applicable

Commission, broker and provide core services: Not applicable

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



3

Place – leadership and influencer: Not applicable

Drivers of change and reform: Not applicable

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: An improved Rights of Way network 
will help provide sustainable transportation and encourage sustainable travel 
options.  

Greater income for social investment: Not applicable.

Cleaner Greener: An improved Rights of Way network will provide better access 
for all to Sefton’s visitor attractions and promote healthier and more sustainable 
modes of transport.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD 5752/19) and Head of Regulation and 
Compliance (LD 4876/19) have been consulted and any comments have been 
incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

None

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee / Council meeting.

(Please delete as appropriate and remove this text)

Contact Officer: Brian Goodwin
Telephone Number: 0151 934 3265
Email Address: brian.goodwin@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 

Background Papers:

Transportation (General Purposes) Sub Committee September 1997 – Proposed 
Dedication of Footpath – Netherton Lane.

Central Sefton Area Committee – June 2014 – Public Rights of Way Dedications – 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



4

1.0 Background

1.1 As part of the continued development and modification of the highway network 
within Sefton Council, the Transportation (General Purposes) Sub Committee 
in September 1997 resolved to approve the dedication of a section of Netherton 
Lane as a Public Footpath. This was to ensure that the right of way network 
was joined up because the proposed dedication would create access to the 
existing Public Footpath Sefton No.5.    

1.2 The Central Sefton Area Committee, at its meeting of 5th June 2014 re-affirmed 
the resolution of the earlier Transportation (General Purposes) Sub Committee 
and the legal dedication was subsequently made in September 2014.

1.3 It is unclear why the original dedication only included a section of the eastern 
end of Netherton Lane and not its full length and at a meeting of the Merseyside 
Local Access Forum, the members raised this query. They requested that 
consideration be given to the remainder of Netherton Lane being dedicated as 
a Public Right of Way and that the status of the lane be upgraded to bridleway.

1.4 Further to this query the development of the second Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan for the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, published 
in 2018, included this as an action. 

2.0 Information
 
2.1 With the development of Broom’s Cross Road and the creation of additional 

pedestrian facilities in the area, the proposed dedication of the remainder of 
Netherton as a Public Right of Way would further enhance the connectivity of 
the network. Also, with the housing developments on Northern Perimeter Road, 
Runnells Lane and Lydiate Lane the proposal would improve access to the 
countryside and wider amenities for both new and existing residents.

2.2 Consultation with Sefton’s Asset Property Manager has confirmed that 
Netherton Lane is still within the ownership of Sefton Council. 

2.3 The Localism Act 2011 by virtue of Section 1 – Local Authority’s general power 
of competence, introduced the power for a Local Authority to do anything that 
individuals generally may do. Therefore, it gave the Local Authority the power, 
as any individual landowner would have, to dedicate a path as public. 

2.4 Other issues raised during consultation within the Authority related to incidents 
of anti-social behaviour in the area and illegal encampments. The main concern 
is that there would likely be an increase in the illegal encampments if Netherton 
Lane was opened up at either end. Currently at each end there are metal gates 
or barriers that restrict vehicle access but still enable pedestrian and cycle 
access. As the barriers do not restrict pedestrians and cyclists it is not proposed 
to alter these as part of the dedication. As such the dedication would expressly 
include these access controls as limitations to the right of way. 

2.5 Along the section of Netherton Lane that isn’t currently a right of way, there is 
encroaching vegetation from either side of the lane. This has created an area 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



5

that isn’t overlooked and is partially enclosed. Following dedication of this 
section the lane would become maintainable by the Council for the purposes of 
walking, horse riding and cycling and as such will require some vegetation 
clearance. In clearing the vegetation and promoting increased use of the lane 
it is expected that the levels of general anti-social will reduce.

 
2.6 Following completion of the dedications, orders to update the Definitive Map 

and Statement (DM) for Public Rights of Way will be required. These are known 
as a Legal Event Modification Orders (LEMO’s). 

2.7 The proposed LEMO for bridleway leading from Brickwall Lane will alter the DM 
Map as shown on Plan No.DC1990 (attached) and alter the DM statement to 
include the following description:  

 Sefton Bridleway No. N14

 Commencing at its junction with Brickwall Lane, point A, O.S Grid 
Reference SD 335030,400449, the way is a tarmac path with a width 
of 8.0 metres running in an east south-easterly direction for a 
distance of 10 metres to a metal access control at point B, O.S Grid 
Reference SD 335038,400445, continuing in an east south-easterly 
direction with a tarmac surface the path 6.0 metres wide for 370 
metres to point C, O.S Grid Reference SD 335392,400339, it then 
continues in an easterly direction for a distance of 45.0 metres as a 
tarmac path with a width of 6.0 metres to point D, O.S Grid Reference 
SD 335437,400339 and then it heads in a north-easterly direction as 
a 6.0 metre wide tarmac path for a distance of 84.0 metres until its 
junction with Sefton No. 5, at point E, O.S Grid Reference SD 
335507,400390.

 The length of the way is 509 metres.

2.8 As a consequence of the proposed dedication and the need to ensure that the 
network is complete it would appropriate to upgrade, by dedication, the existing 
section of Sefton Footpath No.14 from Northern Perimeter Road to its junction 
with Sefton Footpath No.5 to bridleway, as shown on plan No.DC1991.

2.9 The proposed changes to path no.14 will again require alterations to the details 
recorded on the DM. The proposed LEMO for the section to be bridleway will 
alter the DM Map as shown on Plan No.DC1992 (attached) and alter the DM 
statement to include the following description:  

 Sefton Bridleway No. N14

 Commencing at its junction with Sefton Footpath No.5, point A, O.S 
Grid Reference SD 335507,400390, the way heads in a south 
easterly direction is a 7.1 metre wide tarmac path for a distance of 
219.0 metres to point B, O.S Grid Reference SD 335703,400301, it 
then continues as a tarmac path in a south south-easterly direction 
with a width of 7.1 metres for a distance of 10 metres to the gate at 
point C, O.S Grid Reference SD 335710,400292, the way continues 
in a south south-easterly direction as a tarmac path with a width of 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



6

7.5 metres for a distance of 33 to its junction with Northern 
Perimeter Road at point D, O.S Grid Reference SD 
335723,400262.  

 The length of the way is 262 metres.

3.0 Conclusion
 
3.1 In order to protect the rights of the public and their enjoyment of the rights of 

way network it is considered expedient to dedicate the western section of 
Netherton Lane as a bridleway and to provide a joined up, continuous network 
upgrade a section of Sefton Footpath No.14 to a bridleway.

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



7Page 29

Agenda Item 5



8Page 30

Agenda Item 5



9Page 31

Agenda Item 5



10Page 32

Agenda Item 5



Report to: Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Monday 9 
September 2019

Subject: Georgia Close, Bootle – Proposed Permit Parking Area Zone 
421

Report of: Head of Highways 
and Public 
Protection

Wards Affected: Linacre;

Portfolio:

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No.

Summary:

To report on the results of a consultation with residents on a proposal to introduce a 
permit parking scheme in Georgia Close, Bootle

Recommendation(s):

(i) the results of the public consultation be noted.

(ii) The Committee support the progression of a Traffic Regulation Order
the effect of which will introduce a Residents Permit Parking Scheme to operate at 
all times on Georgia Close.

(iii) Members request Cabinet Member Locality Services to authorise the
progression of the necessary Traffic Regulation Orders, including those
of public consultation and advertising the Council's intention to
implement the Order;

(iv) Subject to the scheme being funded from the delegated s106 budget for
Linacre Ward the Committee support the progression of the
recommended Traffic Regulation Order;

(v) In order to simplify Sefton’s Traffic Regulation Orders, current Orders
which exist on any of the roads affected by this proposal will be
revoked, and new Orders made incorporating the new amendments. In
this respect, the following Orders will be revoked and replaced with a
new Order:-
Metropolitan Borough of Sefton (Georgia Close, Bootle) (On-Street
Parking Places, Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting)

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



(vi) in the event that no objections are received during the consultation
process referred to in (iii) above, the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer
be authorised to make the Order and the Service Manager – Highways
Management be authorised to implement the Order; and

(vii) in the event that objections are received during the consultation
process, the matter be referred to a future meeting of this Committee for
consideration.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The Council has the power to revoke a Traffic Regulation Order (Part IV of Schedule 9 to
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984) as well as the power to make a new Traffic
Regulation Order (Section 1 of that Act). Authorisation to advertise new Traffic
Regulation Orders falls under the remit of Cabinet Member Locality Services.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

The cost of advertising and implementing the scheme, amounting to £1500, will be 
funded from the s106 delegated budget for Linacre Ward.

(B) Capital Costs

None

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

None

Legal Implications:

None

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications.

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Will assist Residents and other road users

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Not applicable

Commission, broker and provide core services: Not applicable

Place – leadership and influencer: Not applicable

Drivers of change and reform: Not applicable

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not applicable

Greater income for social investment: Not applicable

Cleaner Greener: Not applicable

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted and notes the report indicates all 
costs associated with the introduction of the Traffic Regulation Orders, amounting to 
£1500, will be funded from the s106 delegated budget for Linacre Ward (FD 5773/19

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD4897/19) have been consulted and has no 
comments on the report.

(B) External Consultations 

None

Contact Officer: Colin Taylor
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 4189
Email Address: colin.taylor@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report.

Background Papers:

None

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



1.0 Introduction/Background

1.1 Following the receipt of a petition from residents regarding lack of on-street 
parking availability on Georgia Close, Bootle Linacre Ward Councillors through 
s106 funds have agreed to fund the introduction of a Residents Permit Parking 
Area in Georgia Close, Bootle

1.2 As a consequence Linacre Ward Members requested that a consultation exercise 
be carried out with residents on Georgia Close, with the cost of the Residents’ 
Privileged Parking scheme being met from their devolved s106 budget.

1.3  A plan showing the proposed Residents Privileged Parking scheme is attached 
as Annex A, and the consultation pack sent to residents is attached as Annex B.

2.0 Consultation

2.1 On 7th May 2019, a total of 23 consultation packs were hand delivered to all
Georgia Close properties except the block of flats at the end of the cul-de-sac. 
The block of flats has ample off-street parking and it is considered that given 
levels of vehicle ownership, residents at the flats have no problems with parking 
for them or their visitors. A copy of the consultation papers is attached as Annex 
A.

2.2 A total of 12 questionnaires were returned by the deadline date of Friday 9th 
August 2019, giving a response rate of 52%. This is considered normal for this 
type of consultation.

2.3 9 of the returned responses were in favour of the scheme with 3 against the 
introduction of a Residents parking scheme, this represents a 75% response rate 
in favour of the proposed scheme. 

3.0 Comments

3.1 None of the residents who responded ‘not in favour’ of the proposals commented 
about the proposed scheme. Of those ‘in favour’ of the scheme only three made 
comments, but the comments were :

• Removing the single yellow line will be a farce if it were to happen.

• My family and I require carers and relatives support my family members 
whilst I am at work. If the yellow line were to be removed we could not 
depend on parking being available. We are in favour of the proposals and 
are happy to pay the fee for the permits.

• Having spoken to my neighbours, many are concerned about paying the 
£30 registration fee, and are therefore considering the option to remove the 
yellow line. However, I feel that many have forgotten the reason for the 
yellow line in the first place. The close was constantly used by shoppers 
and on one occasion my sister was blocked in to her driveway and had to 
wait to get her car out until someone returned from The Strand ! There was 
also another instance when an ambulance could not get access to Georgia 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



Close due to the numbers of cars parked on the bend as you enter 
the close.

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Given the 75% response rate in favour of the introduction of a Residents Permit 
Parking Scheme, it is recommended that the Licensing and Regulatory
Committee support the introduction of the Residents’ Privileged Parking scheme
at this location, and request Cabinet Member Locality Services to authorise the
advertising of the legal Traffic Regulation Order.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



ANNEX A

PROPOSED RESIDENTS’ PERMIT PARKING SCHEME
GEORGIA CLOSE, BOOTLE

CONSULTATION

Following the receipt of a petition from residents regarding lack of on-street parking within 
Georgia Close, Linacre Ward Councillors have agreed to fund the introduction of a
Residents’ Permit Parking Area in Georgia Close.

A plan showing the proposed Permit Parking Area is enclosed with this letter. If the 
majority of residents agree with the proposals, and the scheme is approved by Licensing 
& Regulatory Comittee, each of the residents living in Georgia Close (excluding residents 
from Maryland House) will be eligible to apply for Residents’ permits for each vehicle 
which is registered at their address. In addition, they may also apply for one Visitor’s 
permit per property. Each permit (Resident’s or Visitor’s) will be subject to a one-off £30 
registration fee, i.e. if you have two vehicles and also want the Visitor’s permit, you will be 
charged a total of £90 for the three permits. If you change your vehicle in the future, you 
will be charged another £30 registration fee to change the Resident’s permit. 

If the scheme is progressed, only vehicles displaying a valid parking permit will be 
allowed to park within Georgia Close, between 9.00 a.m. and 6.00 p.m. Mon - Sat.
Outside of these hours, any vehicle is permitted to park. 

The purpose of this consultation is to seek your views on the proposals. Included with 
this letter is a plan showing the proposals and a questionnaire.  Please take the time to 
fill in the questionnaire and return it in the pre-paid envelope provided, to reach us no 
later than Friday 9th August 2019. 

The results of the consultation will be taken to the Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
where Councillors will review all of your comments or objections and decide whether the 
scheme is taken forward. The next meeting of the committee will be on 9 September 
2019 at 6.30 p.m. at the Town Hall, Southport. You are welcome to come along to that 
meeting.

If you require any further information before completing your questionnaire please read 
the attached ‘Frequently Asked Questions’ sheet, or phone our Contact Centre on 0345 
140 0845 and leave a message for Colin Taylor. Colin will phone you back as soon as 
possible. Please let Colin know if you require this information in large print, or any other 
format.

Many Thanks,  
Peter Moore

Head of Highways and Public Protection

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



PROPOSED RESIDENTS’ PARKING SCHEME
GEORGIA CLOSE, BOOTLE

QUESTIONNAIRE

Are you in favour of the proposed Residents’ Parking Scheme on Georgia Close, Bootle, 
as detailed on the enclosed plan?

(Place a tick () in the appropriate box): -

YES

NO

If you have answered ‘No’ which of the following would 
you prefer:-

Removal of the yellow lines completely. (This would 
allow any driver to park in Georgia Close at any time)

YES

NO

Leave the yellow lines as they current are. (No change)
YES

NO

If you have any comments, please continue overleaf

Name: .............................................

Address: .............................................
.............................................
………………….……………
……………………………….

Please complete and return in the pre-paid envelope provided, to reach us no later than 
Friday 9th August 2019.

Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council
Highway Safety Team

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



METROPOLITAN  BOROUGH  OF  SEFTON

Peter Moore

Head of Highways and Public Protection

Title 

Georgia Close, Bootle
Proposed Residents Parking Scheme 

Drawn

Scale

Date

SJ

NTS

Jul 2019

KEY

Existing ‘No Waiting at Any Time’

Proposed ‘Permit Parking Area’

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6



THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



Frequently Asked Questions

How much will the permits cost?
Each resident can apply for a Residents’ permit for each vehicle which is registered at 
their address. In addition, they may also apply for one Visitor’s permit per property. Each 
permit (Resident’s or Visitor’s) will be subject to a one-off £30 registration fee, i.e. if you 
have two vehicles and also want the Visitor’s permit, you will be charged a total of £90 for 
the three permits. If you change your vehicle in the future, you will be charged another 
£30 registration fee to change the Resident’s permit. 

Do I have to pay for a new permit every year?
No – you will only have to pay once, when you initially apply for the permits. The only 
exception to this is if you change your vehicle and need a new permit with the new 
registration number on it.

Why should I pay to park in my own road?
Any vehicle can park on any public road provided it is legally taxed, tested and insured.
What the residents’ parking scheme does is prevent any vehicle from parking in your
road unless it is displaying a permit. Effectively you are paying to prevent outsiders from 
taking up the parking spaces in your road.

Will the permit guarantee a parking space outside my own house?
No – all it will guarantee is to prevent outsiders taking up parking spaces in your road. 
You and your visitors will be able to park anywhere in the road, but generally most 
residents will tend to park outside their own houses.

Who will enforce the scheme?
Sefton’s own parking attendants will regularly patrol each of the roads throughout the 
day, and issue tickets on any vehicle which does not display a valid permit.

What will be the hours of operation?
The scheme is aimed at preventing shoppers and shop workers from parking in your road 
during weekdays, so the scheme will operate Monday to Saturday, 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  
In the evenings and at weekends, vehicles may park without having to display a permit.

Will I be able to receive deliveries?
Yes – Any vehicle will be able to park and unload goods without having to display a 
permit.

This is just a way of the Council making money!
The £30 registration fee for each permit simply covers staff time in receiving applications, 
inputting your details onto our records, printing off the permit and posting the permit out 
to you. All other costs, such as this consultation, production of Committee reports, 
advertising the legal Order in the local Papers and provision of signs and carriageway 
markings are being funded by the Council in order to provide a service to residents. 
Sefton Council will make no money from this scheme.

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



Report to: Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Monday 9 
September 2019

Subject: Determinations made under the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
Gambling Act 2005: period covering 18 May 2019 to 16 August 
2019

Report of: Head of Highways 
and Public 
Protection

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio:

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

N

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

N

Summary:

To update Members regarding those applications, made under the Licensing Act 2003 
and the Gambling Act 2005, that have been determined by Officers.

Recommendation(s):

That Members:

i) note this Report and its contents;
ii) note that further Reports will be brought forward to up date Members as and when 

necessary.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 requires that a written 
record of delegated decisions that would otherwise be made by a committee be 
published to the Council’s website. The publication of this report satisfies that 
requirement for the delegated decisions made in relation to the administration of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

There are no financial costs associated with the proposals in this report

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



(B) Capital Costs

There are no financial costs associated with the proposals in this report

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

None

Legal Implications:

None

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Yes

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

Commission, broker and provide core services: Yes

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted and notes the report indicates no 
direct financial implications for the Council.  (FD 5754/19).

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer has also been consulted with regard to any legal 
implications and any comments have been incorporated into the report.  (LD 4878/19).

(B) External Consultations 

None.

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Kevin Coady
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 2946
Email Address: kevin.coady@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

Annex 1: Numbers determined – Licensing Act 2003
Annex 2: Numbers determined – Gambling Act 2005

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Background

1.1 Members will recall that the Statement of Licensing Policy (issued under the 
Licensing Act 2003) and the Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy (issued 
under the Gambling Act 2005) both follow the recommended delegation of 
functions contained within the Guidance issued under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Guidance issued under Section 25 of the Gambling 
Act 2005.

1.2 In effect this means that where there are no relevant representations to 
applications then these matters are dealt with by Officers. This ensures that 
decisions and functions, particularly for non-contentious applications and purely 
administrative functions, are taken or carried out in a speedy, efficient and cost-
effective way.

1.3 The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 requires that a 
written record of delegated decisions that would otherwise be made by a 
committee be published to the Council’s website. The publication of this report 
satisfies that requirement for the delegated decisions made in relation to the 
administration of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.

2. Numbers determined – Licensing Act 2003

2.1 During the period 18 May 2019 to 16 August 2019 the following number of 
applications have been determined under this Act:

 Applications made under Premise Licences 82
 Applications made under Personal Licences 34
 Applications made under Club Premise Certificates   1
 Notification of Temporary Event Notices 74
 Notification of Late Temporary Event Notices 67

2.2. Details of determinations made under Premise Licences and Club Premise 
Certificates are attached within Annex 1 to this Report.

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



3. Numbers determined – Gambling Act 2005

3.1 During the period 18 May 2019 to 16 August 2019 the following number of 
applications have been determined under this Act:

 Applications made under Licensed Premises Gaming Permits 2
 Notifications given for Licensed Premises Automatic Gaming 3
 Applications made under Club Machine Permits 1

3.2. Details of the above determinations are attached within Annex 2 to this Report.

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



name address2 address3 action closeddate 

Club Emporium 3-5 Waverley Street Southport Transfer 20/05/2019 

Bakers Dozen Dunnings Bridge Road Netherton Variation of DPS  22/05/2019 

One Stop 82 Linacre Lane Bootle Variation of DPS  22/05/2019 

The Wagging Tail 62-64 Botanic Road Southport Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS  22/05/2019 

Champs 3-5 South Road Waterloo Minor Variation      23/05/2019 

Co-op Late Shop 99 Deyes Lane Maghull Variation of DPS  23/05/2019 

Mayflower 11-12 New Strand The Palatine Bootle Transfer 23/05/2019 

Spar 21-23 Liverpool Road Birkdale Variation   23/05/2019 

Little World Market Ltd 2 Dunnings Bridge Road Netherton Grant      24/05/2019 

Rumah 51 Weld Road Birkdale Grant      29/05/2019 

Debenhams Plc 535-563 Lord Street Southport Transfer 03/06/2019 

Marine Bar & Kitchen 3-5 South Road Waterloo Change of Name and/or Address           04/06/2019 

Valentine 70 Haileybury Avenue Aintree Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS  04/06/2019 

Alt Park Northway Maghull Change of Name and/or Address           05/06/2019 

Esso Petrol Station 103 College Road Crosby Transfer 05/06/2019 

Holy Rosary Parochial Centre Aintree Lane Aintree Variation of DPS  05/06/2019 

Pheasant Inn 20 Moss Lane Hightown Variation of DPS  05/06/2019 

Pontins (Southport) Holiday 
Centre Leisure Complex 

Shore Road Ainsdale Variation of DPS  06/06/2019 

Southport Holiday Centre Shore Road Ainsdale Variation of DPS  06/06/2019 

Timberwolf Grind & Tap 44 South Road Waterloo Variation of DPS  10/06/2019 

Beales 295-307 Lord Street Southport Variation of DPS  13/06/2019 

ANNEX 1

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7



Discount Food & Wine 31-33 Bridge Road Crosby Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS         13/06/2019 

St George's Social Centre Station Road Maghull Variation of DPS                                   13/06/2019 

Fleetwoods Mini Mart 18 Fleetwoods Lane Netherton Minor Variation                                    14/06/2019 

Royal Oak Hotel 16-20 Warrenhouse Road Waterloo Transfer                                           14/06/2019 

Horse & Jockey Waddicar Lane Melling Grant                                              17/06/2019 

Ship & Anchor 5-7 Cable Street Southport Transfer                                           17/06/2019 

Tenpin Southport Ocean Plaza Marine Drive Minor Variation                                    17/06/2019 

Bargain Booze 40-42 Liverpool Road Lydiate Variation of DPS                                   18/06/2019 

Bargain Booze 101 Liverpool Road South Maghull Variation of DPS                                   18/06/2019 

Retro 38 West Street Southport Variation                                          19/06/2019 

Crosby Events Centre 17 Moor Lane Crosby Grant                                              24/06/2019 

Harvester Unit 10 Aintree Racecourse 
Retail Park 

Ormskirk Road Minor Variation                                    24/06/2019 

The Phoenix 4-6 Coronation Walk Southport Transfer                                           24/06/2019 

Le Bistrot Pierre 385 Lord Street Southport Variation of DPS                                   26/06/2019 

Supersaver 159 Rawson Road Seaforth Grant                                              27/06/2019 

American Pizza Slice 112 South Road Waterloo Grant                                              01/07/2019 

Guelder Rose 50 Marine Drive Southport Change of Name and/or Address                      01/07/2019 

JHS Premiere 3 Aintree Road Bootle Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS         01/07/2019 

The Park Hotel Dunnings Bridge Road Netherton Variation of DPS                                   01/07/2019 

Aldi Washington Parade Bootle Variation of DPS                                   02/07/2019 

Aldi Store Park Lane West Netherton Variation of DPS                                   02/07/2019 

Coronations of Crosby 79 Coronation Road Crosby Removal of DPS                                     02/07/2019 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 7



Daily Stop 73-75 Manchester Road Southport Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS         02/07/2019 

Roman Kingdom TDP Solicitors Stadium, Vesty 
Road 

Netherton Grant                                              03/07/2019 

Sainsbury's 143-149 Bispham Road Southport Variation of DPS                                   04/07/2019 

Empire Booze Limited 6 The Crescent Thornton Minor Variation                                    05/07/2019 

Meadows Hotel 89A Liverpool Road South Maghull Minor Variation                                    08/07/2019 

Il Capitano's 143 St Johns Road Waterloo Grant                                              09/07/2019 

Ship & Anchor 5-7 Cable Street Southport Variation of DPS                                   10/07/2019 

All in One Convenience Store 185 Liverpool Road North Maghull Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS         11/07/2019 

One Stop 12 Tree View Court Maghull Change of Name and/or Address                      11/07/2019 

Jubilee Inn 41A Hatton Hill Road Litherland Variation of DPS                                   12/07/2019 

Marks & Spencer Simply Foods Halsall Lane Formby Variation of DPS                                   12/07/2019 

B & M Bargains 55-58 New Strand Medway Bootle Variation of DPS                                   15/07/2019 

Netherton & Sefton Sports 
&Social Club 

Fleetwoods Lane Netherton Change of Name and/or Address                      16/07/2019 

The Fat Italian 70 Coronation Road Crosby Transfer                                           17/07/2019 

VK Saba Wines 69 Churchill Avenue Southport Grant                                              17/07/2019 

Marine Bar & Kitchen 3-5 South Road Waterloo Variation                                          19/07/2019 

Fortunata 519 Lord Street Southport Change of Name and/or Address                      23/07/2019 

The Monument 2 Hoghton Street Southport Variation of DPS                                   23/07/2019 

Napoli Pizza 111 Stanley Road Bootle Change of Name and/or Address                      23/07/2019 

The Willow Grove, Lloyds No 1 387-391 Lord Street Southport Change of Name and/or Address                      23/07/2019 

McColls 146 Portland Street Southport Variation of DPS                                   24/07/2019 

The Richmond 234 Scarisbrick New Road Southport Variation of DPS                                   25/07/2019 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 7



Cantinetta Unit 2 Glenn Buildings South Moor Lane Change of Name and/or Address                      26/07/2019 

Iceland 8-10 The Marian Square Netherton Variation of DPS                                   26/07/2019 

Dough 106 Bridge Road Litherland Grant                                              29/07/2019 

Cross House Inn Cross Green Formby Variation of DPS                                   30/07/2019 

The General Store Daniel House, Ground Floor Trinity Road, Bootle Variation of DPS                                   31/07/2019 

Kokomo Coffee Bar 6 Bold Street Southport Variation of DPS                                   31/07/2019 

Signature Living Daniel House - 14th Floor & 14th 
Floor Mezzanine Levels 

Trinity Road, Bootle Variation of DPS                                   31/07/2019 

Super Saver 54-58 Hawthorne Road Bootle Variation                                          31/07/2019 

The Potting Shed 137-141 Lord Street Southport Variation of DPS                                   07/08/2019 

Park Hotel 36 Weld Road Birkdale Variation of DPS                                   08/08/2019 

Lock & Quay 2 Irlam Road Bootle Variation of DPS                                   09/08/2019 

KFC Ormskirk Road Aintree Minor Variation                                    12/08/2019 

Pomodoro Ristorante 12 Union Street Southport Transfer                                           13/08/2019 

Tipple 42 Station Road / 1a Fairfield 
Road 

Ainsdale Variation of DPS                                   13/08/2019 

PizzaExpress 253-255 Lord Street Southport Change of Name and/or Address                      14/08/2019 

Asiatique Thai & Asian 
Restaurant 

1-5 Lord Street Southport Licence Holder Transfer & Variation of DPS         15/08/2019 

Running Horses 25 Bells Lane Lydiate Minor Variation                                    15/08/2019 

The Shrimper Fylde Road Southport Minor Variation                                    15/08/2019 

 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7



name address2 address3 action closeddate activity 
Valentine 70 Haileybury Avenue Aintree Grant      22/05/2019 Licensed Premises Automatic Gaming       
Southport Tenpin Ocean Plaza Marine Drive Variation   10/06/2019 Licensed Premises Gaming Permit          
Scarisbrick Hotel 239 Lord Street Southport Variation   29/07/2019 Licensed Premises Gaming Permit          

Maghull Community Association 604 Green Lane Maghull 
Grant (Fast 
Track) 01/08/2019 Club Machine Permit          

Cooksons Bridge Gorsey Lane Litherland Grant      13/08/2019 Licensed Premises Automatic Gaming       
Jubilee Inn 41A Hatton Hill Road Litherland Grant      14/08/2019 Licensed Premises Automatic Gaming       

ANNEX 2

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Monday 9 
September

Subject: Cross Border Authorisations

Report of: Head of Highways 
and Public 
Protection

Wards Affected:

Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

N

Summary:

To seek the approval of Members of a formal arrangement pursuant to Section 101 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 with neighbouring authorities to facilitate cross border 
enforcement with regards to licensed hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

Recommendation(s):

1) That members approve the proposed agreement between Sefton, Liverpool and 
Knowsley Council

2) That the Head of Highways and Public Protection authorise certain officers from 
the other named Councils to carry out enforcement and compliance functions in 
respect to Sefton licensed vehicles working in their areas.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

There are an increasing number of licensed drivers and vehicles that work across the 
whole of the Liverpool City region. The proposal would allow better regulation of vehicle 
standards by allowing neighbouring authority officers the power to inspect vehicle and 
issue relevant notices if necessary. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

None

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



(B) Capital Costs - none

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

The cost of the service is wholly recovered from the ring-fenced Taxi Licensing Trade 
Account (Revenue Budget BD12).

Legal Implications: 

Legal implications have been considered and advised upon.

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

Commission, broker and provide core services: Delivering better regulation of the taxi 
licensing trade regionally

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted (FD5767/19) and notes the report 
indicates no direct cost implications as expenses incurred are wholly recovered from the 
ring-fenced Taxi Licensing Trade Account. notes The Chief Legal & Democratic Officer 
(LD4891/19) has been consulted and any comments have been incorporated into the 
report.

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



(B) External Consultations 

The proposals have been discussed and agreed with officers from the Liverpool City 
Region authorities.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting

Contact Officers: Mark Toohey
Telephone Number: Tel: Ext 2274
Email Address: mark.toohey@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

Annex 1: Draft agreement

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



1 Background

1.1 Merseyside local authorities have traditionally authorised officers from each 
other’s authorities in relation to taxi licensing functions for many years. The 
purpose of this report is to seek approval for the new attached draft agreement 
and continue with cross border authorisations between Sefton, Knowsley and 
Liverpool Councils.

1.2 Since the Deregulation Act 2015 allowed private hire operators to sub contract 
bookings to any other operator, there has been an increase of vehicles completing 
bookings in one area although the driver and vehicle are licensed in another 
different area. The draft cross border agreement would allow Sefton Officers to 
inspect Liverpool & Knowsley vehicles and vice versa.

2 Proposed Action

2.1 The proposal is that the hackney carriage and private hire enforcement powers 
(as set out below and in the annex to this report) are delegated to Liverpool & 
Knowsley officers. It is also proposed that Sefton receives similar delegated 
enforcement powers from Liverpool & Knowsley.

2.2 The Local Government Act 1972 permits delegations of council functions from one 
council to another by committee, sub-committee or officer of the council. It is 
proposed that the Head of Highways and Public Protection delegates the 
individual officers from the other authorities.

2.3 The proposed enforcement functions from the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 are as follows;

 Section 50(4) Proprietor to produce vehicle licence and insurance 
certificate

 Section 53(3) (a) Driver to produce his licence for inspection
 Section 56(2) Operator to produce private hire booking records
 Section 56(3) Operator to produce private hire vehicle records
 Section 56(4) Operator to produce private hire operator licence
 Section 58(2)(b) Removal of vehicle identification plate or disc following 

revocation, suspension or expiry of vehicle licence
 Section 68 Power to inspect and test fitness of hackney carriage and 

private hire vehicles and issue suspension notice if not satisfied
 Section 73 Obstruction of Authorised Officer

2.4 The effectiveness and operation of the authorisations will be monitored and 
reviewed by each of the authorities participating.

2.5 All participating authorities will continue to work to standardise driver and vehicle 
conditions to make enforcement more consistent and straightforward for the 
officers concerned.

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 101(1) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 
1972

MADE BETWEEN

(1) LIVERPOOL CITY COUNCIL

(2) KNOWSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

(3) SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

WITH REGARD TO THE JOINT DISCHARGE OF THEIR FUNCTIONS RELATING 
TO THEIR ENFORCEMENT POWERS WITH RESPECT TO PRIVATE HIRE AND 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENSING

Dated ……………………………………..

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



WHEREAS pursuant to the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and Part II of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 each of Liverpool City Council, 
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council and Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council is 
responsible for the licensing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles, drivers and 
operators within their respective districts and each authorises enforcement officers 
employed by them to carry out their statutory enforcement and compliance functions 
in respect of the said licences issued by each of them (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Taxi and Private Hire Authorised Officer Compliance Functions” which are carried out 
pursuant to the legislation specified in Appendix A to this agreement)

AND WHEREAS 

in order to better protect and safeguard the safety of the general public each of 
Liverpool City Council, Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council and Sefton 
Metropolitan Borough Council wish to be able to inspect and carry out the Taxi and 
Private Hire Authorised Officer Compliance Functions in respect of hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicles working within their respective geographical boundaries 
which are licensed by each of the three local authorities 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED that from the date hereof pursuant to 
Section 101(1) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972 as follows:

(1) LIVERPOOL CITY COUNCIL shall arrange for the discharge of their Taxi and 
Private Hire Authorised Officer Compliance Functions by Authorised Officers of 
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council in respect  of any hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicle or driver licensed by Liverpool City Council found 
working within the geographical boundary of Knowsley Metropolitan Borough 
Council and likewise by Authorised Officers of Sefton Metropolitan Borough 
Council in respect  of any hackney carriage and private hire vehicle or driver 
licensed by Liverpool City Council found working within the geographical 
boundary of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council, and

 

(2) KNOWSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL shall arrange for the 
discharge of their Taxi and Private Hire Authorised Officer Compliance 
Functions by Authorised Officers of Liverpool City Council in respect  of any 
hackney carriage and private hire vehicle or driver licensed by Knowsley 
Metropolitan Borough Council found working within the geographical boundary 
of Liverpool City Council and likewise by Authorised Officers of Sefton 
Metropolitan Borough Council in respect  of any hackney carriage and private 
hire vehicle or driver licensed by  Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council found 
working within the geographical boundary of Sefton Metropolitan Borough 
Council, and

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



(3) SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL shall arrange for the 
discharge of their Taxi and Private Hire Authorised Officer Compliance 
Functions by Authorised Officers of Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council in 
respect  of any hackney carriage and private hire vehicle or driver licensed by 
Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council found working within the geographical 
boundary of Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council and likewise by 
Authorised Officers of Liverpool City Council in respect  of any hackney carriage 
and private hire vehicle or driver licensed by Sefton Metropolitan Borough 
Council found working within the geographical boundary of Liverpool City 
Council, and

(4) LIVERPOOL CITY COUNCIL, KNOWSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH 
COUNCIL and SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL shall 
henceforth be referred to in this agreement as the “participating enforcement 
local authorities”, and

(5) Each participating enforcement local authority shall provide to the other two 
participating enforcement local authorities, for the purpose of complying with 
the terms of this agreement, a list of the names of the officers it proposes should 
be authorised in writing by the other two participating enforcement local 
authorities for the purposes of Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, and

(6) Each participating local authority shall provide from time to time to the other two 
participating enforcement local authorities, for the purpose of complying with 
the terms of this agreement, lists of the names of any additional officers it 
proposes should be authorised in writing by the other two participating 
enforcement local authorities for the purposes of Part II of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, and

(7) Each participating enforcement local authority (“Authority A”) shall as soon as 
is reasonably practicable, for the purpose of complying with the terms of this 
agreement, arrange for the authorisation of the officers named by the other two 
participating enforcement local authorities (“Authorities B and C”) in the lists 
referred to above to carry out the Taxi and Private Hire Authorised Officer 
Compliance Functions in respect of vehicles and drivers licensed by Authority 
A which are found working in the geographical areas of Authorities B and C, 
and

(8) Each participating enforcement local authority will provide to any other 
participating enforcement local authority upon request a copy of the written 
authorisation respect of every officer authorised pursuant to this agreement, 
and

(9) For the avoidance of doubt, each participating enforcement local authority shall 
retain complete responsibility for the conduct, behaviour and employment terms 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



and conditions of each officer they employ notwithstanding they may have been 
designated, pursuant to this agreement, as an authorised officer by one or more 
of the other participating enforcement local authorities, and

(10) Interventions resulting from a vehicle inspection or interview should be 
notified to the participating enforcement local authority which licences the 
vehicle / driver within three working days by email to include; time, date, 
registration number, driver name and identification; evidence gathered, action 
taken and why and enforcement officer name and contact details, and

(11) Details of individual inspections and interviews involving no action or 
minimal action should still be notified to the participating enforcement local 
authority which licences the vehicle / driver for evidence gathering, and

(12) In the event that one of the participating enforcement local authorities 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Withdrawing Authority”) decides it wishes to 
unilaterally withdraw from this agreement it may do so by giving written notice 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Withdrawal Notice”) to the remaining two 
participating enforcement local authorities specifying a date by which all 
authorisations given by the Withdrawing Authority pursuant to this agreement 
shall cease to have effect (“the Notice Expiry Date”) such date not to be earlier 
than 28 days from the date of the Withdrawal Notice. Notwithstanding the 
passing of the Notice Expiry Date this agreement shall continue in full force and 
effect as between the two remaining participating enforcement local authorities 
who shall remain mutually bound by this agreement until such time as one or 
both gives to the other a written notice terminating this agreement (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Termination Notice”) specifying a date by which all remaining 
authorisations pursuant to this agreement shall cease to have effect, such date 
not to be earlier than 28 days from the date of the Termination Notice. 

This Agreement is made the                 day of                                   201

Signed on behalf of Liverpool City Council 

…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………

PRINT NAME OF SIGNATORY 

Signed on behalf of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council 

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………

PRINT NAME OF SIGNATORY 

Signed on behalf of Knowsley Metropolitan Borough

…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………

PRINT NAME OF SIGNATORY 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



Appendix

Taxi and Private Hire Authorised Officer Compliance Functions 

Part II Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

 Section 50(4) Proprietor to produce vehicle licence and insurance certificate
 Section 53(3) (a) Driver to produce his licence for inspection
 Section 56(2) Operator to produce private hire booking records
 Section 56(3) Operator to produce private hire vehicle records
 Section 56(4) Operator to produce private hire operator licence
•  Section 58(2)(b) Removal of vehicle identification plate or disc following 

revocation, suspension or expiry of vehicle licence
• Section 68 Power to inspect and test fitness of hackney carriage and private 

hire vehicles and issue suspension notice if not satisfied
• Section 73 Obstruction of Authorised Officer

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



Report to: Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee

Date of Meeting: Monday 9 
September

Subject: Taxi Licensing Fees

Report of: Head of Highways 
and Public 
Protection

Wards Affected:

Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

N

Summary:

To seek the approval of Members for an adjustment to the fees and charges for Taxi 
Licensing services in 2019/20.

Recommendation(s):

1. Members support the proposal to increase the enforcement capacity of the Taxi 
Licensing Enforcement Unit by one officer.

2. Members approve the proposed uplift in fees to address the estimated shortfall in 
income and fund the increase in enforcement capacity.

3. To authorise the Head of Highways & Public Protection to advertise the revised 
fees and charges and set an implementation date of Monday 4 November 2019.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The Council has a legal power to recover the full costs of administering the issue and 
enforcement of Taxi Licences. The increase is required to address a shortfall in income 
and expand the enforcement team to deal with an increase in licensed vehicles.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

None

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



(B) Capital Costs - none

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

The cost of the service is wholly recovered from the ring-fenced Taxi Licensing Trade 
Account (Revenue Budget BD12).

Legal Implications: 

Any changes to hackney carriage fees will need to be advertised in accordance with 
S.70 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

Commission, broker and provide core services: Continue to provide an efficient delivery 
of the taxi licensing services in the One Stop Shops and associated taxi licensing 
enforcement.

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted (FD5765/19/19) and notes no 
financial implications are indicated. The report states the cost of the service is wholly 
recovered from the ring-fenced Taxi Licensing Trade Account.  The Chief Legal & 

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



Democratic Officer (LD4889/19) has been consulted and any comments have been 
incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

The proposals will be discussed with representatives of the taxi licensing trade at the 
next quarterly meeting on 3 September 2019.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting

Contact Officers: Terry Wood
Telephone Number: Tel: Ext 4301
Email Address: terry.wood@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

Annex 1: Proposed new fees list and Annex 2: Financial summary attached.

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



1 Background

1.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 entitles the 
Council to recover the cost of administering the Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing service through the application of fees.  Over the 
years through various legal challenges it has been reaffirmed that the 
hackney carriage and private hire licensing regime is intended to be self-
financing.  However, it is also clearly set out that the statutory power to 
charge fees for the grant of licences is not to be used to raise revenue 
generally.

1.1 The Act is specific in indicating costs that should be covered by the fees 
and these include

 Processing applications and providing licences
 Inspection of vehicles
 Provision of Hackney Carriage Stands
 Administrative costs relating to the inspection of Hackney Carriage 

Stands
 Administrative costs relating to the control and supervision of 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles.

1.2 Usually, each year, fees are raised in line with inflation however periodically 
or when there is a significant shift in the service, a review of fees takes 
place to establish whether the level of fees being charged will cover the 
estimated costs that will be incurred as a result of operating the service.  
These reviews have in the past resulted in both the lifting and the reduction 
of fees dependant on the circumstances that prevailed at the time. Indeed, 
Members will recall, as recently as January 2018 the report to Committee 
that recommended no increase in fees for the year 2018/19 because of the 
level in the reserve

1.3 There are several factors that make now a time when a review is 
appropriate, perhaps the two most relevant are;

 The stress being placed on the Administrative Support and Taxi 
Licensing Enforcement Teams due to the unprecedented increase in 
the size of the Private Hire Vehicle fleet.

 The ending of the Arvato Government Services contract with the 
service returning back to an “in-house” provision

1.4 The review has been undertaken with colleagues in the Finance Service 
and it is estimated that the cost of operating the service, as a whole, in 
2019/20 will be approximately £1.3 million. Based on current levels of 
activity it is estimated that money received through fees will be in the region 

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



of £1.1 million.  This includes the assumption of increasing the enforcement 
capacity of the service which is discussed later in this report.

2 Taxi Licensing Increase in Demand

2.1 The number of licence holders has increased quite dramatically over the 

last year as can be seen from Table 1 below.

Table 1 Number of Live Licences

2.2 It is impossible to be definitive as to why this increase has occurred 
although are several factors that may have influenced it.

 Sefton currently has the least expensive licence fees in the 
Liverpool City Region (see Table 2 below)

 Sefton is arguably the most efficient at processing applications
 Deregulation and the development of a regional policy by UBER
 General economic conditions can make Private Hire driving an 

attractive proposition
 There is usually a seasonal spike to take account of the Christmas 

trade.

Table 2 LCR Licence Fees (£) Driver and Vehicle

Licence 
Type

Aug 
18

Sep 
18

Oct 
18

Nov 
18

Dec 
18

Jan 
19

Feb 
19

Mar 
19

Apr 
19

May 
19

Jun 
19

Jul 
19

Hackney 
Driver

335 334 330 321 328 329 330 330 323 325 326 329

Hackney 
Vehicle

268 270 270 270 271 271 270 270 270 270 271 271

PH 
Driver

4548 4628 4716 4784 4987 5084 5178 5273 5374 5490 5611 5753

PH 
Vehicle

3982 4064 4129 4230 4353 4423 4508 4570 4689 4748 4802 4887

PH 
Operator

101 100 98 97 101 101 100 104 101 99 105 103

Licence Type Sefton Knowsley Liverpool St Helens Wirral Halton
Driver (3 year 
Licence)

73 85 150 175 132 184

Vehicle 12 Months 139 210 175 265 187 239
Vehicle 6 Months 81 155 160 100

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



2.3 Deregulation has meant that drivers can now be far more flexible in their 
working patterns.  Ten years ago drivers used to habitually obtain a licence 
with their home or neighbouring authority but because of the changes 
deregulation has brought this is no longer as important for many drivers.  
As table 2 illustrates, Sefton is the most reasonably priced Licensing 
Authority locally, however this is only part of the story.  It is clear that 
Sefton’s One Stop Shop administers the process very efficiently and table 3 
below would support this.

2.4 Table 3 contains official government figures as at October 2018 of the 
number of licence holders in the other LCR authorities. Sefton’s figures 
have been inserted to allow comparison. Whilst there are occasional 
glitches and blockages in the system at peak times these are addressed 
quickly and, on the whole, the trade locally is very complimentary about the 
service they receive at the One Stop Shop.

Table 3 Number of Licences Issued by LCR Authorities

* St Helens and Halton issue mostly dual licences to drivers allowing them 
to drive Hackney or Private Hire vehicles

2.5 Deregulation has had the effect of allowing the cross-border transfer of jobs 
making it now much easier for a driver to work quite close to his home 
whilst being licensed by a Licensing Authority some distance away. In the 
last 12 months UBER have introduced a voluntary regional policy to 
address some of the criticism levelled at them when drivers were licensed 
by authorities sometimes several hundred miles from their home address. 
Their policy now is that any driver wishing to work in a region must be 
licensed by one of the Licensing Authorities in that region. Consequently, 
many drivers who live outside the northwest region but wish to drive in the 
northwest e.g. Manchester have had to obtain a new licence with a 
northwest authority. For the reasons outlined above in paragraphs 2.2 and 
2.3 many have chosen Sefton.

Licence 
Type

Sefton Knowsley Liverpool St Helens Wirral Halton

Hackney 
Driver

330 225 2125 638* 325 433*

Hackney 
Vehicle

270 233 1426 63 246 267

PH 
Driver

4716 1950 2372 638* 1181 457*

PH 
Vehicle

4129 1662 2021 519 1015 115

PH 
Operator

98 40 92 41 86 24

Page 68

Agenda Item 9



2.6 During any economic downturn there tends to be an upward trend in people 
turning to self-employment as an alternative. In some research undertaken 
by the Office of National Statistics a few years ago the four most common 
occupations for self-employment were private hire drivers, carpenters, 
plumbers and farmers.

2.7 Christmas is the busiest time of the year for a Private Hire or Hackney 
Carriage driver. The party season means more people attend social 
functions and want to leave their cars at home.  For this reason, there is 
always a spike in applications during the late autumn as drivers try to make 
sure they secure a licence to work over the busy Christmas period.

3 Impact of Increased Demand 

3.1 Historically new applications to become a Private Hire Driver was a “drop 
in” service at the One Stop Shop (OSS).  When demand increased 
significantly (as demonstrated by the snapshot in Table 1 above) this 
approach became unsustainable.  Huge queues were seen at the OSS, 
waiting times increased and other services began to suffer because of the 
volume of Taxi Licensing business.

3.2  To try to combat this situation and restore some balance at the OSS an 
appointment system was introduced for new applicants.  The remainder of 
services e.g. driver renewals, vehicle licence and renewals, transfers etc. 
remained as “drop in” services. New applicants take a long time to process 
and it was this being a “drop in” that was creating the problem with wait 
times.  

3.3  It can take up to 40 minutes to set up a new driver on the system, explain 
the process and commence all of the various checks that must take place 
before a licence can be issued.  Once on the system all other processes 
e.g. renewals are a lot quicker.  The Bootle OSS hosts the majority of 
appointments and to give an indication of scale, in July 575 appointments 
slots were available at the OSS of which 548 were booked.

3.4  One of the requirements that a prospective driver must satisfy is the 
passing of a Knowledge of Licence Conditions Test.  It is obvious that as 
demand for licences increases so too will the demand for knowledge tests.  
These tests are held at the Bootle OSS and in July there were 490 test 
places available for candidates and 274 candidates took the test.  The pass 
rate for the test at the moment is 47% so over half of the candidates will 
need to book a second test, at least, which compounds the issue further.

3.5 The service is currently experiencing a high level of non-attendance at 
appointments and members will recall, in March 2019, approving the 
introduction of a £25 fee for driver to be paid at the time they book their first 
appointment.  This fee will be discounted from the final licence payment 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



and therefore there is no penalty for a driver who transitions smoothly 
through the licensing process.  However, this fee will not be refunded if a 
driver fails to show up for an appointment or is unsuccessful in their 
application.  

3.6 The introduction of this fee is pending, awaiting the installation of a 
scheduler for the Contact Centre to use when making appointments. This 
will allow the taking of payment over the telephone and the inclusion of the 
various safeguards required e.g. emailing applicant with receipt and terms 
and conditions, email/sms text reminders for applicants.  Table 4 below 
illustrates the scale of this issue and why the scheduler is required.  
Partners at Agilysis are due to complete the design and installation of the 
scheduler by January 2020 and the split fee will then be introduced.

Table 4 Bootle OSS Appointment Stats July 2019

Appt 
Slots

Appts 
Booked

No Show Attended Pass Fail

New Driver Appt 575 548 255 
(46%)

295
 (54%)

Knowledge Test 490 358 84
 (23%)

274 
(77%)

128 
(47%)

146 
(53%)

3.7 The increase in the size of the fleet has also had its impact on Taxi 
Licensing Enforcement.  The increase in the number of vehicles and the 
number of drivers has seen a proportionate rise in the number mitigation 
cases when drivers are refused a licence or their licence is revoked, the 
number of complaints to be investigated and the number of vehicles to be 
inspected.

3.8 The geographical footprint over which our drivers now work has increased 
considerably and consequently the likelihood of seeing some of   our 
vehicles by chance is slim.  To address this issue our proactive risk based 
inspection programme has been scaled up.  Extra resource is required to 
maintain a robust enforcement/monitoring presence to assure the safety of 
the fleet and the suitability of drivers.

3.9 An additional Enforcement Officer would allow the service to meet this 
increased demand and bring the number of officers more in line with the 
other LCR authorities.  Table 5 gives an indication of the number of officers 
involved in Taxi Licensing in the other LCR authorities that responded to 
our enquiry.

Page 70

Agenda Item 9



Table 5 ratio of Officers to Licences in the LCR
Sefton Knowsley Liverpool Wirral Halton

Total Licences 9534 4110 8039 2853 863
Enforcement 
Officers

5 4 9* 3 1

Ratio Licences to 
Officer

1909 1028 892 951 863

**Liverpool’s officers work more generically covering street trading and premises 
licensing

4 Proposed Fee Structure

4.1 The proposed new fees are attached to this report. As previously 
mentioned it takes longer to process a new application than a renewal 
application so it is proposed that a higher fee is introduced for new 
applications.  It is also proposed when the scheduler is operational that a 
£25 “deposit” is taken from drivers when they make their initial appointment 
to address the issue of applicants not turning up for their appointment.

4.2 The proposed fee for a new 3 years driver licence would therefore rise to 
£90 (£25 deposit and £65 balance when the scheduler is operational). The 
cost of renewing a 3 years driver licence would rise to £84.

4.3 This will make Sefton £5 more expensive for a new 3 year driver licence 
compared to the current lowest priced licence locally which is £85 in 
Knowsley. Sefton would remain the lowest price authority for a new vehicle 
licence at £160 with Liverpool the next lowest at £175, Knowsley charges 
£210 for the renewal of a 12 month vehicle licence.

4.4 The proposed fee uplift represents a rise of approximately 15% across all 
licences.

4.5 The attached financial summary shows a projected deficit for the taxi 
licensing service but this is based on application numbers remaining 
constant. As can be seen in table one, the number of new applicants for 
private hire drivers and vehicles continues to rise and this should address 
the projected deficit.

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



Page 72

Agenda Item 9



Sefton Council Proposed Taxi & Private Hire Fees and Charges – November 2019

2019/20
Revised 
2019/20

All Driver Licences (max 3 years) £ £
New Drivers 1 year 24 30

Renewal Drivers 1 year 24 28

Vehicle Licences (max 1 year) £ £
Private Hire up to 8 years old 1 year 139 160

Private Hire over 8 years old 6 months 81 90

All Hackney Carriages up to 8 years old 1 year 139 160

Non-Metropolitan Hackney Cabs over 8 years old 6 months 81 90

Metropolitan Hackney cabs between 8-11 years old 1 year 139 160

Metropolitan Hackney cabs over 11 years old 6 months 81 90

Horse Omnibuses (any age) 1 year 126 130

Pedicab Omnibuses 1 year 62 70

All Private Hire Operator Licences (max 5 years) £ £
Operate 1 to 2 vehicles 1 year 32 37

Operate 3 to 50 vehicles 1 year 158 180

Operate 51 to 100 vehicles 1 year 190 220

Operate 100+ vehicles 1 year 220 250

Miscellaneous Fees £ £
Transfer of Hackney Driver licence to Private Hire 19.5 22

Transfer of Private Hire Driver licence to Hackney 19.5 22

Transfer of Licence Holder – any vehicle  19.5 22

Change of Vehicle Registration – any vehicle  19.5 22

Duplicate Licence (any type)  13.5 15

Duplicate driver’s badge or internal Vehicle plate  6.5 8

Duplicate External Vehicle Plate  13.5 15

Enhanced DBS Check  50 50

DVLA Driver Licence Check 5 5

  

Minimum Solicitor & Road Traffic Accident Written Enquiry 
Response Fees £ £
Simple release of data 38 50

Complex release of data (charge per hour) 80
*

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Forecast Outturn Forecast Outturn
2019 - 20 2020 - 21

£ £

Employees - Sals, NI & Super (forecast) 793,097 847,719 2% pay award assumed, 1 extra enforcement officer
Premises 28,008 28,288 Assumption of 1% expenditure uplift
Supplies & Services 383,842 387,680 Assumption of 1% expenditure uplift
Support Services 90,721 90,721
Transport 11,500 23,000 Extra enforcement vehicle

Expenditure 1,307,166 1,377,407

Income -1,147,290 -1,170,236 Assumed 2% uplift on income.  Does not account for likely increases in volume

2019 / 20 159,877 Forecast Deficit 207,171 Forecast Deficit

Surplus / Deficit b'fwd on Taxi Reserve Account -59,030 7,646

Additional income from proposed fee increase @ 1st Nov 2019 -93,200 -195,922 

Forecast Reserve Position 2019/20 7,646 Deficit 18,895 Deficit

LICENSING - TAXI & PRIVATE HIRE

Period: 2019 / 20

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Town Lane, Kew - Objection to Proposed Raised Cycle Zebra Crossing / Traffic Regulation Order
	5 Public Path Dedication - Netherton Lane, Netherton
	6 Georgia Close, Bootle – Proposed Permit Parking Area Zone 421
	7 Determinations made under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005: period covering 18 May 2019 to 16 August 2019
	Annex 1 for Licensing update Report
	Annex 2 for Licensing update Report

	8 Taxi Licensing Cross Border Authorisations
	Enc. 1 for Taxi Licensing Cross Border Authorisations

	9 Taxi Licensing Fees
	Enc. 1 for Taxi Licensing Fees
	Enc. 2 for Taxi Licensing Fees


